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Chairman Luick: Presented SB 2238. Brief explanation of what the bill intends to 
accomplish. 
 
Senator Hogan: Would a city have to request permission from the county in order to use 
emanate domain? 
 
Chairman Luick: No. 
 
Dustin Gawrylow: See attachment #1 for testimony in support of SB 2238. 
 
Pete Hanebutt, FB: We do support this bill. 
 

Opposition 
 

Josh Wolsky, Alderman, City of Minot: See attachment #2 for testimony in opposition of 
SB 2238.  
 
Senator Larsen: Excuse me, but I’m going to ask a hypothetical question. During the 2011 
flood cycle, we had an entity come in and give a scenario of how to fix the flooding problems 
of Minot and Fargo. The results he that he gave, if we went route that we are going, would 
be these huge flood walls and dikes. If this would have been law, do think that would have 
hindered the production that is happening now? Because we are rolling forward and spending 
lots of money along the Souris river basin. If this becomes law, do you think it would slow the 
process?  
 
Wolsky: I am not sure that I agree, no. The position of the city of Minot, is that in our 
jurisdiction, we should be the final authority in cases of eminent domain.  
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Senator Klein: What we are doing here is providing for that political subdivision to make the 
decision that affect them. I think what this bill does, is the elected county officials have some 
say on what happens within their county. 
 
Wolsky: I do not disagree. The testimony I provided to this committee was largely based on 
an interpretation that the cities authority would be preempted or have to go through the 
county’s authority. And so that is the main reason I was asked to provide this testimony.   
  
Steph:  See attachment #3 for testimony in opposition of SB 2238. 
 
Tim Freije, North Dakota State Water Commission: See attachment #4 for testimony in 
opposition of SB 2238. 
 
Senator Hogan: As the State Water Commission, many of your projects are cross-
jurisdictional; do you see this as an administrative challenge? How do you see this actually 
working on your projects? 
 
Tim Freije: I see it as a potential roadblock. Without that quick-take authority, the State is 
very much exposed to potential cost increases. And we already work with the county 
whenever we can, we like to have a meeting with them before our projects and get a letter 
signoff from them. 
 
Chairman Luick: Do you use the quick-take at all? 
 
Tim Freije: Primarily. 
 
Chairman Luick: How many times since 2015 have you had reason to use that?  
 
Tim Freije: I do not have that figure.    
 
Jack Dwyer, NDWUA, and NDWRDA: See attachment #5 for testimony in opposition of SB 
2238. 
 
Chairman Luick: So you are thinking that you would just be able to go in and claim eminent 
domain without any county authority having anything to say about what happens in their 
county? 
 
Jack Dwyer: Yes I do. It would be problematic if we had a problem getting a certain county 
commission to ratify aa eminent domain that was necessary for a project. 
 
Chairman Luick: Would that not be something you do up front anyway? 
 
Jack Dwyer: Along with what Mr. Freije said, we have not used eminent domain regularly, it 
has been very rare that we have used it. We are usually able to reach amicable agreements 
with landowners; we treat landowners with the utmost respect. To answer your question, it 
would be better to approach county commissions beforehand generally; but it would be 
problematic to go before them for every single case. 
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Senator Klein: You see it as problematic, but thus far, you have been playing by the rules, 
you have been working with the counties. It has not yet been a problem; you are looking at 
this in the future, thinking that you never want to have your hands tied. However, there is no 
problem with the cooperation between the cities and the county’s right now, is there? 
 
Jack Dwyer: We have not had issues, we have not had to approach the county to request 
eminent domain in past though. So, we have not had an issue requesting approval. 
 
Senator Larsen:  That begs the question on that idea that was spurred in Minot went I was 
a part of the conversation of when this flood happened. We had an individual who was from 
Jackson Hole, Wyoming, that did projects in Nashville, TN, South Dakota, Sioux City, IA, he 
did major flood projects overseas as well. His response was that you could not make land 
overseas. So he was building these flood walls and all sorts of new ways of handling flood 
protection, at a fraction of the cost! So, if those little counties had the ability to hold their own, 
we could have much more effective flood protection, at a much smaller cost to the taxpayer, 
as well as the landowners. 
 
Jack Dwyer: I do not recall the individual from Wyoming, so I do not know if I can answer 
your question.      
 
Todd Kranda, NDPC: See attachment #6 for testimony in opposition of SB 2238. 
 
Chairman Luick: I would have to say that I disagree with the opinion that it will cause more 
trouble than it seeks to fix, and that we do not have that conflict today, because we do. We 
write law here, as I perceive it, for the very few that destroy or disobey the law. So, your 
company might be doing an astounding job of getting out there and exploiting the impacts of 
that particular project is that you are representing. But there are places and cases where that 
does not happen. So, rather than what you were referring to earlier about it causing more 
harm than good, I look at it the other way. I believe that having more people informed is going 
to cause less consternation and less of a problem moving forward with your projects. 
 
Todd Kranda: The goal would be to have more information sharing, but the final decision of 
approval or denial, that is a serious concern. If your bill was rewritten to include something 
about information sessions or something in advance to be provided. But having a second 
level of judicial review by a county commission, similar to what a judge does in the eminent 
domain process, creates some problems.  
 
Gaydos, NDDOT: See attachment #7 for testimony in opposition of SB 2238. 
 
Chairman Luick: Closes hearing on SB 2238 
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Chairman Luick: Opened SB 2238 for committee discussion.  
 
Senator Klein: On another of your bills, SB 2238, we had the discussion on eminent domain 
and I think I understand your concerns. I am not sure I understand any of these folk’s 
concerns because I was reluctant to believe that this is going to be some major concern. 
They are looking to the future just in case. I heard from Jack that we don’t have any trouble 
now and that they work together. Are they concerned that down the road they won’t want to 
work together and they can drive the truck down where they don’t have to ask the other 
county? I see the hypothetical concerns with the Fargo issue. Wouldn’t we need to reach out 
to the next county anyway? And, Mr. Dwyer’s comments about concerns, well, we have 
concerns when he is talking about sub-surface water management. He wants to make sure 
everyone downstream knows. I don’t know which way to go on that one. It was not very easy 
for me to figure out how to fix this.  
 
Chairman Luick: After committee, Mr. Dwyer caught me upstairs and he had not talked with 
my county water board. He represents the county boards as a lobbyist. He had only been 
talked to by the Cass County water board. I asked him to talk to my water board. I don’t want 
them fighting against the upstream coalition group, or going back and forth. I can see the 
benefit of this. Not only for my situation, but to me, it comes back to having the decency of 
going out ahead of time and making sure that this is not going to be a big burden on your 
county. It can be a timbering event, but if all of you know what is going on ahead of time and 
your county board say to wait because of all of the people it will effect as well as the county 
revenue, etc.  
 
Senator Larsen: (Inaudible.) 
Senator Hogan: I think the two people that really surprised me, were Todd Kranda and the 
North Dakota Petroleum Council and their concerns about pipelines. It sometimes does 
happen when they are issuing pipeline easements. I had not thought about that.  
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Chairman Luick: Last session we had this bill, and Senator Unruh brought up that very same 
thing. She was really afraid that it was going to be effecting their types of things.  
 
Senator Hogan: That is the potential for unintended consequences.  
 
Chairman Luick: That is one of the reasons that I went to her to see if she has any heartburn 
about actually being a sponsor. I will still get more information on this bill as well.  
 
Senator Osland: In this whole respect, I had one little experience in this area. It was pretty 
minor. When I was county commissioner, they were building a power line from the west to 
the east, and these people that were involved with the power line came and visited with me 
probably 3 years before they built it. They showed us a map where they might go. It was like 
a cup of coffee at a meeting, and they said they would get back to me. As it turned out, the 
line came but it didn’t go through our county. Going from the practical sense, these water 
issues cover more than one county, so if engineers were going to take property they would 
visit with the county commissioners and they would have an opportunity to say no – that is 
what we are talking about, right? 
 
Senator Larsen: In our situation, we had an engineering firm from Jackson Hole, WY come 
in to just the city and discuss an issue on how we could address the flood problem that would 
affect the whole Souris River water basin, and he was only allowed to talk to the city people. 
He did not talk to all the others that would alternately be affected. Then another engineering 
firm that now has the contract, they just buffaloed over this guy and he did not have any other 
input. They are doing this big project without that. If everyone could have heard his story and 
have input, it would have had a whole different outlook possibly. It is unbelievable what we 
are doing. I feel if more input and more eyes were on the project it would have been a better 
buy in. 
 
Chairman Luick: I feel that the ones that were talking against it have a suspicion that 
something is going to be bad in the future. It is disheartening to me. Basically you are taking 
away the property rights. We need to make sure that the property rights are, as best that we 
can, stay available to that property owner. If eminent domain for a quick take is absolutely 
necessary and needed, so be it, but until that point the people should have their rights to their 
property.  
 
Senator Klein: The language does not say that they cannot do that. You just need to work 
together with the county. That there should be notification.  
 
Chairman Luick: Correct. Going back to the hypothetical situation south of Fargo that may 
or may not have happened, the original county water resource board to this date has not had 
a meeting with the authority in charge that is not the other counties water board. It is an 
appointed group. They have not had the conversations yet about this project. They are 
assuming that everyone knows what is going on, but it has not happened. It is unfortunate.  
I would like to have a little more time to work on this. Closed the committee discussion on SB 
2238.  
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Chairman Luick: Opened second hearing on SB 2238. 
 
Chairman Luick: Proceeded to distribute a proposed amendment #19.0976.01001 (see 
attachment #1) to SB 2238. He then went on to explain that the language in the bill did not 
match the intent. The proposed amendment would seek to change the language to match 
the intentions of the sponsor. 
 
Senator Klein: Moved to adopt amendment #19.0976.01001 
 
Senator Larsen: Seconded. 

 
A Roll Call was held: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carries 
The amendment was adopted. 

 
Senator Hogan: I do still intend to oppose this bill due to the testimony provided by the 
Petroleum Council. 
 
Senator Osland: I have question concerning the Association of Counties, did they weigh in 
on this at all? 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: They did not. 
 
Chairman Luick: There is no fiscal note on this, so we can hold it off until next week. 
 
Senator Osland: I was just wondering because normally they would weigh in on something 
like this; they would voice an opinion.  
 
Senator Klein: We did receive opposing testimony from Chad Peterson, Vice-Chairman of 
the Cass County Commission. 
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Chairman Luick: That was before the amendment however. 
 
Senator Hogan: Could we perhaps ask someone from the Association of Counties to come 
testify? 
 
Chairman Luick: You bet we can. 
 
Senator Hogan: Let us do it. 
 
Chairman Luick: Not a problem. 
 
Senator Hogan: Okay. 
 
Chairman Luick: Closed hearing on SB 2238. 
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Chairman Luick: Opened hearing on SB 2238                                               

 
Aaron Birst, Association of Counties: Quite frankly, this bill is a little bit difficult for us. We 
understand what you are trying to do, we agree that elected officials should have some 
involvement when this process happens, because it is a controversial process. The problem 
is, the big elephant in the room, if this is a diversion issue, our counties have some 
disagreements on that, and so I cannot engage in determining whether or not one county 
should be able to have some authority over another county. Under the bill you have proposed, 
one county could veto a project that maybe another county wants, if that is the issue, that 
becomes a problem for the association of counties and I have to back out of this presentation. 
However, I understand, in terms of pipeline projects and most water projects, that it make 
sense for elected officials to, at some point, have a say in that process. I would be happy 
take any questions. 
 
Senator Hogan: I was surprised when the pipeline and the Petroleum Council all came in so 
strongly on this; Are you aware of any instances where those cross-jurisdictional problems 
have happened? 
 
Aaron Birst: For the most part, it works out pretty well, so I have not seen it as an issue in 
the last 20 years, with the exception of the Fargo Diversion Project. 
 
Senator Hogan: So the current system has worked efficiently in terms of the use of eminent 
domain? 
 
Aaron Birst: I would say that the current system works for political subdivisions, I would say 
there are some citizen that are frustrated with eminent domain, but in terms of counties, cities, 
state work together, that has worked generally worked out pretty well. 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: I live in the northeastern part of the state, and we have a county that has 
frequent heavy flooding, sadly, we have to work with the Canadians on that issue, so there 
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are some concerns in that county over this bill. Have you heard anything from that particular 
part of the state? 
 
Aaron Birst: We have had a lot of feedback from different counties on this, and again, the 
counties are appreciative of your effort because they think they should be involved in this 
process. If eminent domain is being exercised, a county should be involved on a large project, 
I have heard talk of even amending the bill to cut out the smaller projects, we would have no 
objections to that. It becomes a question of whether has a disagreement with another county, 
what to do with that. 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: So, just for my peace of mind, can you go through the ABCs of the bill 
and explain it does and does not do? 
 
Aaron Birst: It requires the county authority to allow for the eminent domain use, and again, 
on small projects, I 100% agree with that concept. But, if it is a large project that crosses 
multiple counties, multiply political subdivisions than we cannot take a position because of 
the Diversion Project. I think the Diversion will happen, at the end of the all the parties will 
get together and work through it, I do not see one county vetoing another county, but under 
this bill, there is that potential. 
 
Chairman Luick: How would it work out if it were state boundaries rather than county? 
 
Aaron Birst:  That is excellent question. First, I should make sure this is clear, counties in 
general are not thrilled with the eminent domain process and think it should be used 
sparingly. Ultimately, those questions between States and Nations, hopefully you would have 
a judge to make that call. 
 
Chairman Luick: That is the whole thing behind this; it should go into the hands of an elected 
board, to make decisions of a territorial type. Even on the lower end of this scale, you end up 
with, if it is a situation where property is being condemned on a smaller scale, that are some 
property rights that are being violated, and if it is not an elected board that is overseeing this, 
than we are giving the authority to whoever wants to go and condemn that property. I look at 
this like, if it is the highway department, the DoT or a water project, and there are small 
acreage involved, I can see that being no problem. However, when you move in and start 
taking property and it is on a mass amount, so now it has a direct taxable effect upon the 
evaluation of property in that county, now we are looking at something more serious. 
 
Aaron Birst: You are 100% right, these are difficult decisions that should be made by elected 
officials, and again, that is why we support the general concept. The problem becomes when 
you have a project that crosses multiple members of the Association of Counties, and if there 
is a disagreement on whether the project should occur. Ultimately, I would suggest that the 
bill has consultation with the elected officials, and I do not know how you would write that, 
but there should be elected officials in that process. Whether they ultimately can veto a 
process is, again, problematic if you have multiple counties that disagree. 
 
Chairman Luick: Would that not ultimately end up in court anyway? 
 



Senate Agriculture Committee  
SB 2238 
2/8/19 
Page 3  
   

Aaron Birst: If you pass the bill as is, than ultimately, say Richland County say that they do 
not approve of this particular project and Cass County says that they need that project, the 
only solution is a judge. Therefore, if you pass the bill I foresee court action, rather you pass 
the bill or not really. 
Chairman Luick: I look at it like, ok, so let us leave the Diversion out of the picture entirely, 
let move to a dry county area; should one county have the authority to take property from 
another county? 
 
Aaron Birst: On the holistic approach, we feel counties should have a say in the eminent 
domain process, so I agree with you in that concept. But then there is also concept of two 
counties disagreeing, one county is suggesting that a pipeline go through and one is 
suggesting that it should not. If the folks that want the pipeline in that county, if the county 
commissioners approve of it, than you have those taxpayers who are represented by their 
commissioners who say we want this. You might then have commissioners who say, well we 
are not beholden to you, we are not elected by you and we are going to make a decision for 
you. Therefore, at the end of the day, it has to be some kind of a judge who makes that ruling. 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: So this is an extremely difficult issue because I hear from my county 
exactly what you are saying.  They do not like eminent domain generally, and want authority 
over it and yet we have pipelines and the Red River in my district, so we are a mess. Is there 
anything we can do to this bill to make it agreeable to these counties? 
 
Aaron Birst: If you were to make it so that they do have out right veto authority, instead 
giving them some sort of consultation with public hearings to maybe slow the process and 
give everyone a better understanding of the project, that certain seems like it would work as 
well. However, the bill as it is now with the total veto authority, which is weird because I am 
with the Association of Counties and am suggesting that you do not give the counties that 
much authority. 
 
Chairman Luick: And in visiting with myself, my good side, thinking about putting a limitation 
on the amount of acreage; If it is over a certain amount of acreage than the county 
Commissioners would then be involved. 
 
Aaron Birst: I have not run that potential through my legislative committee, but what I would 
suggest is that you should do that, at least to eliminate some of the opposition. Because right 
now it is pretty broad, the county could veto a small gathering pipeline. If you put the acreage 
limit in there, than at least we are addressing the main issue, it does not get us past all of the 
issues, but it does address the main one. 
 
Chairman Luick: It creates more of a hardship for that county if that evaluation of that 
property is then depleted. 
 
Aaron Birst: You are correct. At least it would take some of that opposition away from this 
bill; maybe the Petroleum Council will not have as many objects if it was cut out of the bill. 
 
Senator Hogan: Under the current law, if there was an eminent domain claim against land 
in another county and it went to court, would the county where the land is in have standing 
to provide testimony in that court case? Would they be a party to the legal procedure? 
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Aaron Birst: Yes. A county that is being harmed by the action of another county would have 
standing to challenge that. 
 
Senator Hogan: So they would a voice in the decision about the eminent domain at this 
time?” 
 
Aaron Birst: They would certainly have the opportunity to provide their input, whether they 
feel they have a voice in the process or not is… 
 
Senator Hogan: But they have an opportunity. 
 
Aaron Birst: Again, I always think of eminent domain like this, it is a powerful tool that must 
be used. I will geek out here, but as Spock said, “The needs of the few cannot prevail over 
the needs of the many”. You certainly need to have some ability, if the vast majority of people 
need a project to happen, it needs to happen; you cannot have one county stop that project. 
That being said, it is a complete legislative determination in terms of who wields that authority, 
of course we have given that authority to pipelines, waterlines, and historically what we have 
done is given water boards the ability, because the watersheds cross multiple counties. 
 
Senator Osland: Assuming we pass this, the project still goes forward and they still use 
eminent domain, just because the county Commissioners say no, that is not going to preclude 
this from going on. As a property owner and for some reason the negotiations go down, we 
go to court; Can the county commission bar what the property owner does with their property? 
Most eminent domain cases do not go to court, so if they come and want to acquire this piece 
of property and I say yeah okey dokey, we are good. Can the county bar that? 
 
Aaron Birst: Under the current bill, that seems to be the reading. Because ultimately, the 
county would have to approve the project. 
 
Senator Osland: So then, eminent domain goes onto the property and county says no, then 
we go to court; no matter what this bill does, it will probably prevail anyway. 
 
Aaron Birst: That is the ultimate question. Frankly, we would hold that those are state 
judges, elected in multiple districts, who would make that determination. If it is a federal judge, 
those are appointed of course, and in theory, there is a federal judge in Iowa can make this 
decision. 
 
No further testimony 
 
General Discussion among committee members 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal voiced apprehension over the amount of power given to the 
counties. Stated her desire to have discussions with the commissioners in her county 
in an effort to understand better the specific concerns they have with the bill. 
 
Chairman Luick agreed with Vice Chair Myrdal, and further stated the need to have 
acreage limitation in place. 
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Senator Osland called upon Aaron Birst for further question. 
 
Senator Osland: Has there ever been a case where this has been an issue, other than what 
we are seeing today? 
 
Aaron Birst: Yes, for the most part, most of the time it is isolated to a county verses a city, 
in terms of a city expansion or whatever. Again, because of cities, counties, all townships 
support energy development, it have not been a lot of cases in terms of the political 
subdivisions having a problem with each other on eminent domain; but most of the political 
subdivisions understand that projects need to happen. 
 
Senator Larsen: How about the Missouri river system and how every dam has been put on 
the reservation, Garrison Dam on the Three Affiliated Tribes, Fort Peck Dam in Montana; 
The reservations did not have much say in that at all. 
 
Aaron Birst: That is a sad chapter in our history; I would that we are now much more willing 
to listen. However, at the end of the day, it comes down to politics and who has the votes 
and who does not. 
 
Chairman Luick: I think it comes down to also to what is in the laws, because if it is not 
there, if it is something that can be tweaked, by golly somebody is going to go after it and try 
to misinterpret it. 
 
Aaron Birst: You have an incredibly difficult job, not just on this issue but all around. We rely 
on the legislature to provide us our marching orders, and you have to make some very difficult 
decisions on who should wield authority; that is why you are paid the big bucks. 
 
Senator Larsen: We had the Sandpiper Pipeline, which was a great idea, but it would have 
sent our oil to Duluth. When it stopped at the border, that was very frustrating, I do not 
understand how that state could stop that pipeline at the border and prevent it from going to 
Duluth. 
 
Aaron Birst: Just to be clear, counties are supportive of projects that cross county lines. 
However, in that particular case, you have to deal with that in terms of balancing; personally, 
we would say that a state should be able to do that, the county is the microcosm of that. But, 
again, a judge will be the one making that call. 
 
Chairman Luick: Closed hearing on SB 2238. 
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Chairman Luick: Called the committee to order on SB 2338. There were a few groups that 
were against the proposed bill because it went into their jurisdictional boundaries or cross 
county lines. There were 6-7 jurisdiction subdivisions that crossed over county lines. The 
intent of the bill was not for that. I talked to a few different county commissioners and lobbyists 
about what point does a county have fiscal impacts if a certain amount of acreage of another 
county is condemned and changed in their tax code for different taxing purposes. One of the 
county commissioners says nothing. We are looking at a situation where if you put in a 
transmission line for oil or water and the utility company needs to have some variances as 
far as how they can travel or use eminent domain in your county. I don’t think that zero 
limitation should be there. I came up with 320 acres of area within another county so that if 
320 acres or less is condemned, that county commission of that county would not have to be 
notified. If it is above 320, I and another county commissioner decided that that gets into the 
situation where it is two quarters and there might be a tax consequence the county should 
be aware of. That is what the amendment does.  
 
Senator Hogan: Would it be the total property in a county or would it be an individual plot? 
If you had a pipeline going across a county, would you count all the area all the way across 
or would it just be that 1 plot is 320 acres?  
 
Chairman Luick: One plot.  
 
Senator Klein: Let’s use Cass and Richland as an example. I know that back a few sessions, 
we filled the Brynhild room with folks from the Kindred school district. I understand where we 
are trying to go here. However, isn’t this just going to get litigated anyway? Whether we pass 
this or not, someone is going to sue someone over what they believe is for the public good 
or blocking the ability for a county to grow. I am not sure how we can circle the wagons on 
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this one. It is a tough one. I have been chatting with folks and I never got a definite yes or 
no. I am suggesting that we need a few more minutes to think it through or run it by a few 
more folks. I am sensing this will be a difficult sell.  
 
Chairman Luick: I do not know. I am the messenger.  
 
Senator Myrdal: I agree. I think this is very difficult. I go back to the fact that 320 acres that 
have been in the family for 120 years cannot be replaced. It is very hard to make a decision 
on this. However, I like this better than it was. We deal with pipelines in my district. One of 
them went across our land and I could take you on a picnic and you would never know you 
are sitting on top of it.  
 
Chairman Luick: That bill that we passed to make sure the oil and pipeline companies 
reform that land back to original condition was very good for what we did in the last few 
sessions on that. One of the county commissioners I spoke with said they will absolutely not 
back off of this one acre. If there is something going on in another county, is that the way you 
want that handled in that county? Now, quick taking of a domain is eminent domain on 
steroids. That is the way that is across the state. This is a buffered down portion of eminent 
domain. Yet, the county commission does not have to be notified.  
 
Senator Myrdal: Do we have time to think on this a little longer?  
 
Chairman Luick: Absolutely. I want you to think on it.  
 
Senator Myrdal: This is something I want to talk to my three counties about. I am not going 
to make this decision on behalf of Cass county. No offense on Cass county but I can’t.  
 
Chairman Luick: I beg you to not do that because I get my butt in a ringer when I make 
decisions on farming things. I do not look at just my own district. As the chairman of this 
committee, I think about what is best for the state. I have been put through the ringer on 
these things because I have been looking at my district alone, or have not been looking at 
my district alone. That goes with the job.  
 
Senator Osland: You can take a pig and do so much lipstick but it is still a pig. I think the 
genesis of this bill is for me, digging a ditch or running a pipeline is to go get a blessing from 
the county commission.  
 
Chairman Luick: That is if you are in another county.  
 
Senator Osland: If I am running a pipeline, I am in another county. If I have land in another 
county that goes into another county, then I am out of that county. With this bill, could the 
county of Lake Sacajawea, stop the Lake? They took eminent domain there.  
 
Chairman Luick: I think it is just like what Senator Klein said. That is going to wind up in the 
courts. I am sure that case did. Eminent domain in that case would have no bearing.  
 
Senator Osland: Under this bill, the county commission wouldn’t have any say in that then?  
 



Senate Agriculture Committee  
SB 2238 
February 13, 2019 
Page 3  
   

Chairman Luick: Under this bill, it requires them to notify the county commission of the 
joining county and then they would have the authority to deny of approve such a motion. That 
doesn’t mean it can’t go to court.  
 
Senator Osland: If they deny it, then what is the next step?  
 
Chairman Luick: Municipal district court.  
 
Senator Osland: So you go to court opposing the commissioner. You then go to the owner 
of the land. You have to go through two road blocks to get that job done.  
 
Chairman Luick: I am not an attorney so I cannot tell you if that is correct.  
 
Senator Osland: We are giving the commission power here. They may say they do not want 
to do that. Then we would have to litigate that. 
 
Chairman Luick: I would think you would have a better understanding of that yourself being 
that you were once a county commissioner. Did you ever have anything like that where the 
county commission was sued then someone was there in that county to follow through on?  
 
Senator Osland: We are a flat lined county and we have all sorts of water issues. I do not 
recall a law suit ever occurring on those issues. Going back to the eminent domain, we did 
have a power company that came and visited us. We had an informal information meeting. 
They told us they may come through out county with the line. They did the line but they took 
a different route. I am trying to approach this from the practical standpoint. If we had to do a 
ditch and get some property, according to this we would have to go to the county commission 
and get permission.  
 
Chairman Luick: You need permission if it is more than 320 acres.  
 
Senator Osland: Let us assume it is. If they said no, then we would have to litigate that. We 
are giving them that power. We would then have to go back and negotiate. Without, the 
county commission issue, we could negotiate and be done with it and not have to visit a 
court.  
 
Chairman Luick: The whole thing comes down to property rights and if you want the people 
of ND to have the right to protect their property through an elected board.  
 
Senator Hogan: If that land owner was protesting the taking through eminent domain and it 
went to court, the county could testify at that hearing correct? If there was a protest over 
eminent domain, that might be a legal question we want to ask someone so you do not have 
two court hearings on the same issue.  
 
Chairman Luick: I am not a lawyer so I cannot answer that.  
 
Senator Osland: If the county commission says no, then we have that hurdle. It is for the 
good of the people which is the definition of eminent domain, you would prevail. A judge 
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would say yes or no. You can have a judge in Missouri or Sn Francisco. You can get some 
different outcomes because of that.  
 
Chairman Luick: It seems to be putting a layer of bureaucracy to get the job completed. 
That layer is a voted on board. That is the nemesis.  
 
Senator Osland: What powers do the board have? We are giving them the power to do this. 
They do not have the power at this point in time. We are providing that torch through this bill.  
 
Senator Myrdal: That is one of the reasons I think the counties need to communicate more 
on where they stand on this. They are split because of different county interests. These are 
basis core constitutional concepts we are dealing with. I would like to know the process in 
court and how expedient that would be. If this law passes, then those big projects would be 
aware of that. There are very strong interests on both sides. Fundamentally, we need to look 
out for the constitutional right of a land owner.  
 
Senator Osland: You are talking about the eminent domain of the property. That is 
devastating, I understand. I met a guy on an airplane who owned land that was condemned 
because of eminent domain. He got sick right away when he brought it up. That is a different 
issue. That has been in law since the beginning of time. We are just talking about putting the 
layer of the county commission in that body. We are not talking about grabbing someone’s 
land. That is not the issue. We have the Minot water deal which goes through multiple 
counties as well as other cases that are doing that same thing.  
 
Senator Hogan: This is a huge issue in building the wall between Mexico in Texas because 
they are using eminent domain. That is related to this. I do not know if they are using counties 
or not. That is another place where there are huge eminent domain questions, particularly on 
the areas where U.S. land will be on the other side of the wall. They will own the property but 
have to access to service. It gets so complicated.  
 
Senator Klein: The use of eminent domain without prior approval; if it is a project that 
someone believes is for the common good, doesn’t matter. They get prior approval. If they 
do not, there is going to be litigation. I do not know if we can get to what you want to get to. 
It is going to be something on the books. Say the county doesn’t get approval, then the county 
goes to court and the landowner says they do not want to do certain things but the county 
will still think it is good to do. Either way, we are in a position where we might not be following 
something that would be legal or illegal.  
 
Chairman Luick: The evaluation principle is in question. If this land it condemned that has 
buildings on it, they are reduced in value. That is a problem for the county to assess the 
value. That is another concern because now you can have these 320 acres with several 
businesses on there. That will make some taxation evaluation changes to the condemned 
county. It is easy so point the finger at Richland and Cass county. It can happen in other 
places as well. If there is more information we need to get, we will see where we can go with 
that. For now, we will end the discussion on 2238.  
 
Additional testimony was submitted to the clerk. See attachment #1 and #2. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 11-11-14 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to powers of the board of county commissioners; and to 
amend and reenact section 32-15-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
limitations on eminent domain authority. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 0 

 
Chairman Luick: Called the committee to order on SB 2238. Did everyone get their concerns 
and questions answered? 
 
Senator Klein: Would you like to put that new amendment? 
 
Chairman Luick: I thought we already did that.  
 
Senator Klein: The 320 acres.  
 
Chairman Luick: Isn’t that already on there?  
 
Senator Klein: Amendment 01001 is yes.  
 
Chairman Luick: The last part of that is the 320 acres which is not on the bill yet.  
 
Senator Klein: If we would want to further amend because that is language in which the next 
amendment would provide for the 320 acres. The other language is still the same. I didn’t 
move that first amendment.  
 
Senator Klein: Moved to withdraw amendment 19.0976.01001. 
 
Senator Osland: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Luick: Any Discussion?  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken:  6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 
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Motion Carried. 
 
Senator Luick: Now we are back to the bare bill.  
 
Senator Myrdal: Moved to Adopt Amendment 19.0976.01002. 
 
Senator Larsen: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Luick: Any Discussion?  
 
Senator Myrdal: I visited with my three counties. I received mixed messages. Some hadn’t 
read the bill and said yes. I told them to read the bill first. They all got back to me and asked 
if we can change the language too lesser and consult. I do not see that doing anything.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Klein: I appreciate all your efforts and I understand where you are going with this. 
If you look through all the testimony, it is difficult for me to support this. 
 
Senator Klein: Moved a Do Not Pass as Amended.  
 
Senator Osland: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Luick: Any Discussion? 
 
Senator Hogan: I think this has potential for a lot of unintended consequences. I know it 
primarily for one area but I think it has issues for the whole state. I will support the motion.  
 
Senator Klein: This wasn’t one of the easy ones. Most of us have struggled. We understand 
it is the Chairman’s bill. We understand the issue it addresses. It also may affect other parts 
of the state. I feel that I can’t support this.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken. 4 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Hogan will carry the bill.  
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19.0976.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Luick 

January 31, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2238 

Page 1, line 10, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipality is 
located." 

Page 2, line 3, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipality is 
located." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0976.01001 



19.0976.01002 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Luick 

February 11, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2238 

Page 1, line 9, after "condemned" insert "exceeds three hundred and twenty acres [129.499 
hectares] and 

Page 1, line 10, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipality is 
located." 

Page 2, line 2, after "property" insert "in excess of three hundred and twenty acres [129.499 
hectares]" 

Page 2, line 3, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipality is 
located." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0976.01002 
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Insert LC: 19.0976.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2238: Agriculture Committee (Sen. Luick, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (4 YEAS, 
2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2238 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1, line 9, after "condemned" insert "exceeds three hundred and twenty acres (129.499 
hectares) and 

Page 1, line 10, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the 
term "political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the 
municipality's eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the 
municipality is located." 

Page 2, line 2, after "property" insert "in excess of three hundred and twenty acres (129.499 
hectares)" 

Page 2, line 3, after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipality 
is located." 

Renumber accordingly 
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January 18, 2019 

Dustin Gawrylow 
North Dakota Watchdog Network 
dgawrylow@watchingnd.com 

Re: January 15, 2019 Open Records Request 

Dear Mr. Gawrylow: 
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Seth A. Thompson 

sathompson@vogellaw.com 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

Thank you for the open records request you sent to Kim Schilke on January 15, 2019. Vogel Law 
Firm represents the Western Area Water Supply Authority ("WA WSA"), and I write in response to 
your request that seeks: 

documentation for ALL usage of Eminent Domain and/or Quick Take since 
chartering by the state; when it has been executed and used, as well as when it has 
been threatened to be used (i.e., legal notice sent to land owners (i.e. legal notice 
sent to land owners). 

Your request is vague as to what is being sought; thus, I write for clarity. Your request asks for 
documentation for all usage of eminent domain and/or quick take since WA WSA 's creation. It is 
unclear what documents your request seeks. Does your request seek all documents related the use 
of eminent domain and/or quick take since WA WSA creation? If so, please note such a request 
seeks thousands of documents and will require many hours of work to fulfill the request. By law, 
WA WSA is entitled to charge a reasonable cost for a public records request at .25 cents per page 
and $25 per hour after the first hour. N.D.C.C. § 44-04-18(2). 

Note that instances in which WA WSA has used eminent domain are in the public domain because 
eminent domain actions are litigated in the courts of North Dakota. Thus if you are seeking the 
instances in which eminent domain has been used, a list of district court case docket numbers in 
which WA WSA has used eminent domain can be provided. Please let me know if this will satisfy 
your request. 

Your request also asks for documentation as to when eminent domain has been "threatened." 
Please clarify this request. For clarity, I do not understand your request to seek documentation in 
which WA WSA has merely explained the eminent domain process to a land owner, but seek your 
clarification. 

VOGEL 
Law Firm 

US Bank Building I 200 North 3rd Street, Suite 201 I PO Box 2097 I Bismarck, ND 58502-2097 
Phone: 701.258.7899 I Fax: 701.258.9705 I Toll Free: 877.629.0705 

Fargo• Bismarck• Moorhead •Minneapolis• Grand Forks www.vogellaw.com 
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I look forward to clarification of your open records request. 

Sincerely, 

Seth A. Thompson 

SAT:jjc 
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North Dakota Senate 
Agriculture Committee 
Chairman Larry Luick 

January 31, 2019 

By: Josh Wolsky 
Alderman, City Council, City of Minot 
iosh.wolsky@minotnd.org 
701-340-1763 

SB 2238 

Chairman Luick and Members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, my name is Josh 

Wolsky. The governing body of the City of Minot is a city council consisting of the mayor and 

six aldermen. I am one of those six aldermen. On behalf of the City of Minot, thank you for the 

opportunity to speak today on behalf of our entire city council in opposition to SB 2238 . 

As a political subdivision, the City of Minot from time to time has to acquire property 

through eminent domain. We must, of course follow state and federal law whenever we use this 

tool. However, our policy is to use it sparingly. If at all possible, the City tries to avoid the use 

of eminent domain. 

As a last resort tool, when we do exercise it, city staff and consultants, our legal team, 

and the City Council are all deeply involved in the process of acquiring the needed parcels. The 

City knows the detailed history of each parcel, and what the specific issues are regarding the 

acquisition of the parcel. 

SB 2238 complicates this process tremendously. Let me address that both procedurally 

and substantively. 

First, procedurally. SB 2238 would add another step at the beginning of the eminent 

- domain process by adding approval of the County Commission to exercise eminent domain 
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proceedings. Let us note that the County Commission is likely not involved in the project or 

may only have limited knowledge of why the parcel is required for the project. The City would 

need to educate the County Commission as to the purpose of the acquisition which would require 

time and expenditure upon the City, and also the time of the County Commission. Additionally, 

the County Commission is likely busy with the matters the Commission must oversee, and this 

would add to their workload. Additionally, there is the risk that the Commission may want to 

block the acquisition for an unknown reason which could stop a necessary project from moving 

forward, which the County would not oversee or maintain, or otherwise have anything to do 

with. 

Substantively, SB 2238 would result in a loss of local control. Involving the county in 

city business in this manner is nearly unprecedented. In what other area would we give the 

county essentially veto control over a city matter? We are a state that largely respects local 

control, which generally believes that elected officials closest to the matter are in the best 

position to weight competing issues, and ultimately be accountable for the decisions. Let's keep 

it that way. Let's not raise city decisions to a county level. 

It is for these reasons that the City of Minot opposes SB 223 8 and would ask for a Do 

Not Pass. Thank you and I will stand for questions. 

• 

• 

• 
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Watford Cityr..���gg� 
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1/31/2019 
10:00 AM- Roosevelt Room 

Urge a DO NOT Pass on 2238 

Chairman Luick and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, 
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City of Watford City 
213 2nd St. NE I P.O. Box 494 

Watford City, ND 58854 

Ph. 701-444-2533 

Fax 701-444-3004 

www.cityofwatfordcity.com 

The city of Watford City would like to share its concerns with SB 2238. In our community of 
rapid growth, our elected city council and its appointed staff respect the property of the 
people of the community. We have completed many public improvement projects over the 
last decade. With the culture of respect, the fasted growing city in North Dakota has 
successfully completed these projects without needing to use eminent domain. Having it in 
the tool box, however is important as it brings people (who are frequently absentee and don't 
benefit from the public improvement) to the negotiating table. The city opposes any changes 
to NDCC 11-11-14 and NDCC 32-15-01 including the creations of NDCC 32-15-01-3. 

• Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a state entity or political subdivision may 
not acquire private property through the use of eminent domain without prior approval 
from the county commission of the county where the property is located. 

The issue that is created with this proposed provision is that you have a project of public 
benefit in one LPS (city) with an elected council with an outcome determined by a different 
elected board of a LPS (county). The provision has the potential to create significant strain 
between elected boards of LPS's that when working in harmony lead the best community 
outcomes and efficiencies with public dollars. 

For these reasons Chairman Luick and members of the Senate Agriculture committee, the 
city of Watford City asked you to: 

Provide a DO NOT Pass recommendation on SB 2238. 

Thank you for the opportunity to share our concerns with you. 

Mayor Phil Riely, City of Watford City 
(701) 570-4338 
Phil riely@yahoo.com 
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Senate Bill 2238 - State Water Commission 
Senate Agriculture Committee 

January 31, 2019 

Good morning Chairman Luick and members of the Senate Agriculture 

Committee. I am Tim Freije, Northwest Area Water Supply 

(NAWS)/Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) Section Head for the State 

Water Commission. I am appearing before you today regarding Senate 

Bill 2'238, relating to the power of a County Commission to approve or 

deny our authority to exercise eminent domain. 

The North Dakota State Water Commission (NDSWC) owns NAWS, SWPP, 

and the Devils Lake outlets. The North Dakota legislature has given 

NDSWC eminent domain authority including quick take, specifically for 

the construction of these projects. NAWS and SWPP are large regional 

water systems providing quality water to the citizens of North Dakota and 

are specifically authorized in legislation. The NDSWC administers the 

construction contracts for both projects. NAWS and SWPP comprise over 

5,500 miles of pipelines and are currently serving roughly 90,000 

citizens. There were roughly 11,000 easements acquired for the two 

projects, only 42 of which required the use of our eminent domain 

authority. The Devils Lake outlets have pumped 1.16 million acre-feet of 

water out of the lake, which equates to approximately 6.5 feet at current 

lake levels, and about 65,000 fewer acres of land being inundated by the 

lake. Eight of the twenty easements acquired for the outlets required the 

use of eminent domain. Based on these numbers, it is clear that we have 

used this authority sparingly. Extensive negotiations are completed 

before this authority is exercised. 

1 
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On pipeline contracts, the pipeline alignment is not finalized until the -1:1:lf !J,Z. 
design is between 60-90 percent complete. Easement acquisition cannot 

begin until this time which is usually within a few months of a project 

being bid. This leaves a fairly narrow window to obtain the necessary 

easements, and work often begins prior to all easements being acquired. 

Requiring the approval of a County Commission will only delay the 

process and would subjugate the authority specifically granted to us by 

the legislature to facilitate the construction of these important 

legislatively authorized projects. 

There are also many occasions when the originally designed route 

changes. Some of the reasons for changing the route include actual field 

conditions, field conflicts, and the addition of users. Changes in routes 

happen during construction, and the easement is needed quickly so as to 

not delay construction. NDSWC's staff makes every effort to get the 

easement without the use of condemnation. NDSWC only resorts to 

condemnation when there are no other options available. The current 

century code allows NDSWC to take possession of the right-of-way after 

making a written offer to purchase and after depositing the amount with 

the clerk of the District court in the county where the property is located. 

This process can be completed within weeks. Adding an additional 

approval requirement from the County Commission will only extend the 

timeline for getting the easement. That will be detrimental to the 

completion of the construction contracts and will result in additive cost to 

state taxpayers. 

Budgets for water development projects are based off of appropriations 

provided by the legislature and are not ambulatory, therefore, when costs 

2 
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increase, either fewer citizens are served or serving them takes more 

time resulting in subsequently greater expense. 

The NDSWC uses eminent domain authority very responsibly as 

evidenced in the minimal number of occasions when it has been used, 

and negotiated settlement is always preferred. While we use it sparingly, 

its use is critical in those instances when it is required to keep a project 

on schedule and reduce costs to the taxpayers. 

We request that the proposed requirement for County Commission 

approval before using eminent domain be removed, especially for those 

projects for which the legislature has specifically provided us with quick 

take authority. 

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony on Senate Bill 2238. If you 

have any questions, I will do my best to address them . 

3 
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Testimony, SB 2238 

10:00 AM, January 3 1, 2019 

Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol, Bismarck, ND 

Jack Dwyer, North Dakota Water Users Association, North Dakota Water Resource Districts 

Chairman Luick and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee: 

My name is Jack Dwyer and I am representing the North Dakota Water Users Association and 

the North Dakota Water Resource Districts Association. I am here to testify on behalf of those 

groups in opposition to Senate Bill 2238. 

Eminent domain judgements can be a large aspect of projects being conducted by our members 

intended to benefit the state and its residents. These state funded projects are often large in 

scale and span multiple counties. Waiting for approval for eminent domain from multiple 

counties would cause delays and cost the state money. 

The North Dakota Water Users Association and the North Dakota Water Resource Districts 

Association ask for a DO NOT PASS recommendation of SB 2238. 

Thank you for your time and allowing me to speak this morning. 

Dedicated to Protect, Develop, and Manage North Dakota's Water Resources 
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Chairman Luick, Senate Agriculture Committee members, for the record my name 

is Todd D .  Kranda. I am an attorney with the Kelsch Ruff Kranda Nagle & Ludwig Law 

Firm in Mandan. I appear before you today as a lobbyist on behalf of the North Dakota 

Petroleum Council (NDPC) to oppose SB 223 8 .  

NDPC represents more than 500 companies involved i n  all aspects o f  the oil and 

gas industry, including oil and gas production, refining, pipelines, transportation, mineral 

leasing, consulting, legal work, and oi lfield service activities in North Dakota, and has 

been representing the energy industry since 1 952 .  

SB  223 8 provides ,  in  Section 1 ,  for  the addition of  a new subsection to Section 1 1 -

1 1 - 1 4 NDCC regarding the powers of the board of county commissioners . I have 

attached a copy of Section 1 1 - 1 1 - 1 4 NDCC in its entirety for your reference regarding the 

• 
various powers of the board of county commissioners . SB 223 8 provides for an 

additional power to the board of county commissioners regarding the approval or denial 

of the exerc ise of eminent domain authority by a state entity or political subdivision. 

Also, SB 223 8 ,  in Section 2 ,  adds a new subsection to Section 32 - 1 5 -0 l NDCC regarding 

eminent domain with a limitation on the exercise of eminent domain by a state entity or 

political subdivision. The changes being proposed by SB 223 8 would make the decision 

by a s tate entity or political subdivision to acquire property through eminent domain 

subj ect to another duplicated process for the prior approval by the county commission. 

• 

SB 223 8 unnecessarily restricts and sets up a barrier to the process and use of 

eminent domain by a state entity or political subdivision. S everal projects throughout the 

state would be detrimental ly impacted and significantly delayed, if not completely 

prevented and cancel led, with this type of extra process required as proposed under SB 

223 8 before eminent domain is  implemented. 
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� c:>92. Further, SB 223 8 is revers ing and going in the complete opposite direction of the 

effort that was passed in the 20 1 7 Session to unify and streamline the energy conversion 
• 

and transmission facility s iting process .  In the 20 1 7  Session, the Legis lature passed SB  

2286  (House vote of  92-0 & Senate vote of 4 7-0) which was an effort by a coalition of  

interested parties to identify and establish a unified and streamlined process to site energy 

conversion and transmission facil ities with all relevant information being presented to the 

Public Service Commission which has the authority and oversight for s iting . The Publ ic 

Service Commission would review and include any local requirements within the 

issuance of a route and s ite approval for a facil ity. That effort was intended to establish 

and require a s ingle streamlined siting process before the Public Service Commission at 

which time all concerns including any by the impacted local jurisdictions would be 

presented, raised and addressed. That streamlined process was intended to create an 

efficient process to avoid multiple local jurisdictions from holding multiple hearings with 

separate decis ions , potentially inconsistent with each other, on the same subj ect matter. • 

The process being suggested under SB  223 8 would create uncertainty and 

inconsistency with the exercise of eminent domain by a state entity or pol itical 

subdivision. The process for eminent domain is already well defined and established as 

provided for in Chapter 32 - 1 5 NDCC .  Copy attached for your reference .  The process used 

with eminent domain s ituations does not need to be changed to include a separate 

requirement and prior approval by county commissioners . The additional layer of prior 

approval by the county commission is not appropriate nor necessary. 

In conclusion, NDPC urges your opposition to SB 2238 and respectfully requests a 

Do Not Pass recommendation. Thank you and I would be happy to try to answer any 

questions . 

• 
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1 1 -1 1 -1 4 . Powers of board of county commiss ioners .  
T h e  board o f  cou n ty commissioners sha l l  have the fol l owi n g  powers : 

S l) z.z '3% 
t-31 - l �  

#<, �3 
1 .  To i n st itute and  prosecute civ i l  actions for and on beha l f  of the cou nty and i n  i ts name . 

2 .  To make a l l  orde rs respecting property of the cou nty. 
3 .  To levy a tax not exceeding the amount a uthorized b y  law. 
4 .  To contro l  t he  finances , t o  contract d ebts and  borrow money, t o  make payments of 

debts and  expenses , to estab l i sh  charges for any cou nty or other  serv ices , and to 
contro l the property of the county. 

5 .  To construct and  repa i r  b ri dges and  to  open , l ay  out ,  vacate , and  change h ighways i n  
the cases p rovided b y  l aw. But the board may not contract for the construct ion of 
bri dges costi ng  more than one hund red do l l a rs without fi rst comply i ng with the 
prov is ions of chapter 24-08 .  

6 .  To estab l i s h  e lect ion preci ncts i n  the  cou nty i n  a reas outs ide  the  boundaries o f  
i ncorporated cit ies except as prov ided i n  chapter 1 6 . 1 -04 . 

7 .  To eq ua l ize t h e  assessments o f  t h e  cou nty i n  the man ner  provided b y  law. 
8 .  To furn i sh  to the county officers the n ecessary te lephone ,  postage ,  te lephone and 

te l eg raph to l l s ,  and a l l  other th i ngs  necessary and  i nc ide ntal to  the performance of  the 
dut ies of the i r  respective offices to be pa id out of the cou nty treasury. 

9 .  To fu rn i sh  a fi reproof safe i n  wh ich t o  keep a l l  t h e  books , records ,  vouchers ,  and 

1 0 . 
1 1 .  
1 2 . 

papers perta i n i n g  to the bus iness of the board . 
To d ispose of property of the county i n  the manner  p rov ided  i n  chapter 1 1 -27 .  
To p u rchase lands  i n  l ieu o f  those so ld . 
To grant to any  person the r ight of way for the erect ion  of te lephone l i nes ,  e l ectri c l i gh t  
systems ,  water or wastewater systems ,  o r  gas or  o i l  p i pe l i ne systems over, u nder, o r  
u po n  pub l i c  g rounds ,  coun ty streets , road s ,  or  h i ghways . 

1 3 . To esta b l i s h  a garbage and trash co l l ectio n  system encompass i ng  a l l  o r  any part of the 
territory of the county. The words "garbage and trash col l ect ion  system" inc lude the 
operat ion and ma i ntenance of one  or  more san i ta ry landfi l l  s i tes ,  or  other types of 
process i ng  s ites for the d i sposa l of trash  and ga rbage .  The board may operate such 
system i n  coo peration  with any one or more pol i t ica l  s u bd iv is ions of th i s  o r  any  othe r  
state i n  a ccordance with chapte r 54-40 .  The  board may borrow money by  issu i ng  
cert ificates of  i ndebtedness , repayab l e  from fees o r  s pecia l  assessments , o r  both ,  
wh ich  may be charged to  the proper  parce ls o f  land  o r  to persons rece iv i ng  the  d i rect 
benefits of the  garbage and trash co l l ect ion  system ,  o r  repayab le  i n  such other manner  
as  may be p rovided by  law, i n  o rder  to  pu rchase the i n i t ia l equ i pment and l and  
necessary for operation  o f  t he  system .  I f  the board resolves to  esta b l ish  such a 
system ,  the expenses of estab l i sh i ng ,  operat i n g ,  and ma i nta i n i ng  it may be fi n anced 
by fees  charged to persons receiv i ng  d i rect benefits or by  speci a l  assessment aga i nst 
the parce l s  of l and  proper ly charged therewith , o r  by both such fees and assessments . 
The asses sment  may be made,  p u b l is hed , a l tered , a ppea led from ,  and  confi rmed 
under  the p rocedu res set forth i n  chapte r 1 1 -28 . 1 .  

1 4 . To ma in ta i n ,  i n  its d iscretion ,  a l l  p ub l i c  roads and  private h i g hways and roads that are 
be i ng  used as part of regu la rly  sched u led pub l i c  schoo lbus  routes .  

1 5 . To expend  cou n ty fu nds for the pu rpose of part ic i pat i ng  i n  an  o rgan ization  of cou nty 
governm ents p u rsuant to section 1 1 - 1 0-24 . Th is  subsect ion does not authorize a m i l l  
levy, a nd  t h e  l i m itat ions  em bod ied i n  sect ion 57- 1 5-06 app ly  to expend i tures u nder  th is 
subsect ion , wh ich expend itu res sha l l be from the cou nty genera l  fu nd . 

1 6 . To expe n d  cou nty fu nds  to fi nance in  part o r  ent i re ly  for cou nty emp loyees a g roup  
i nsurance p rog ram for hosp ita l  benefits , med ica l  benefits or l ife i n su rance ,  and a g roup  
reti remen t  p rog ram through  either the state reti rement  program or  a p rivate com pany . 
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1 8 . 
To do  ahd perform any  othe r  d ut ies p rescribed by law. 

�lo�lt-

1 9 . 
20 .  

To loan , o r .  g rant money to  and  secu re a mortgage from i nd iv i dua l s ,  assoc iat ions ,  
co"rporati ons ,  o r  l i m ited l i ab i l ity compan ies and to pu rchase owners h i p  sha res i n  
corporations ,  l i m ited l i ab i l i ty com pan ies ,  o r  othe r  bus i ness assoc iat i ons  as  p rov ided 
through  the p roced u res estab l ished by the state 's  com mun ity deve lopment b lock g rant  
program estab l ished pu rsuant to the Hous ing  and Commun i ty Development  Act of 
1 974 [Pub .  L .  93-383 ;  88 Stat . 633 ;  42 U . S .C .  530 1 et seq . ] .  Th i s  power app l ies  to a l l  
commun ity deve lopment b lock g rant transactions of t he  board o f  cou nty 
com m iss ioners ,  i n cl u d i ng any transactions prior to Ju ly 1 ,  1 98 7 .  The cou nty is  n ot 
lend i ng its funds o r  extend i ng its credit to any indiv idual , assoc iation , o r  o rg a n izat ion 
u nder  th is s u bsect ion  and no general l iab i lity on the part of  the cou nty i s  i n cu rred . 
To l i cense ,  tax, and  regu l ate pawn b rokers outs ide  of mun ic ipa l i t ies . 
To acq u i re by lease ,  p u rchase , g ift ,  condemnation , or  other lawfu l means  a n d  to ho ld  
i n  i ts  name for use and  control as provided by law, both real  and  persona l  property and 
easements and  rights of  way with i n  the coun ty for a l l  pu rposes a uthorized by law or  
necessary to the exercise of any power g ranted . 

2 1 . To partici pate and enact or  adopt ord inances and resol utions  necessary for 
partic ipati on  i n  the nat ion 's  h i storic preservat ion p rog ra m as a certified loca l  
government ,  as prov ided for u nder 36 CFR 6 1 . 6 .  

2 2 .  To regu late t h e  confi nement and  control of dogs , cats ,  a n d  other  househo ld  pets , 
p rovided the regu lat ions do not confl i ct with ru les adopted by the state board of an ima l  
heal th . 

23 .  To req u i re that fi n anc ia l  records ,  i ncl ud i ng  a l l  revenues ,  expend i tu res , fu n d  ba lances , 
and  comp lete budgets , be subm itted to the board of cou nty com miss ione rs at a ti me 
and i n  a format req uested by the  board by  a l l  boards ,  autho ri t i es ,  com m ittees , and  
comm iss ions with mem bers appo i nted by the  board of  cou nty com m iss ione rs before 
the board 's  cons i de rat ion of the budget and tax levy. 

24 . To expend  coun ty fu nds as a donati on  for a cap i ta l i m p rovement  p roject to a nonp rofi t  
hea l th care fac i l ity with i n  the cou nty. 

2 5 .  To expend cou nty fu nds  for erad icat ion o f  gophe rs ,  p ra i r ie  dog s ,  rabb its , crows , o r  
magp ies .  

26 .  To expend cou nty fu nds  to  enhance com m u n icat ions i nfrastructu re fo r cou n tywide  
benefi t .  

27 .  To prov ide for the p l ann i n g ,  des ig n ,  acqu is i t i on , deve lopment ,  operat ion ,  ma i nten ance , 
and  support of automation  and  te lecommun icat ions resou rces .  

2 8 .  To provide  for fi reb reaks a n d  othe r  fi re protect ion a n d  s u p p ress i on  meas u res .  
29 .  To construct ,  eq u i p ,  operate , and  ma i nta i n  cou nty bu i l d i ngs ,  i ncl u d i n g  cou rt fac i l i t ies , 

correct ion  centers , j a i l s ,  and  other  law enforcement fac i l i t ies . 
30 .  To requ i re that a l l  fi nancia l  records ,  i nc l u d i n g  a l l  revenues ,  expen d itu res , fu nd  

ba lances ,  and comp lete budgets be subm itted to t he  board o f  cou nty com m iss ioners 
at a t i me and  i n  a format requ ested by the board of cou nty com m iss ion e rs by a l l  
boards ,  autho ri ti es ,  com m ittees , and  comm iss ions appo i nted by t h e  board o f  cou nty 
com m iss ioners before cons iderat ion by the board of cou nty com m iss ion e rs of the 
budget and l evy req u est .  

• 

• 

• 
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North Dakota Leg is lative Branch 
Chapter 32-1 5 

Eminent Domain 

Sect ion Section Name 

32- 1 5-0 1 Eminent domain defined - How exercised - Condemnor defined - Exceptions 

32-1 5-02 P urposes for which exercised 

32-1 5-03 What estate subject to be taken 

32-1 5-0 3 . 1 Dec laration of leg is lative i ntent 

32- 1 5-0 3 . 2  Termination o f  estates greater than a n  easement 

32-1 5-04 What property may be ta ken 

32-1 5-05 What must appear before property taken 

32-1 5-06 Entry for making surveys 

32-1 5-06. 1 Duty to negotiate - Just compensation - Appraisals 

32-1 5-06 . 2  Disclosures 

32- 1 5-07 Proceed ings by civ i l  action 

32-1 5-08 Form of summons - When served 

32- 1 5-09 Service by pub l ication 

32- 1 5- 1 0 Copy of summons served through mai ls 

32-1 5 - 1 1 Service complete, when 

32- 1 5- 1 2 When note of issue fi led 

32-1 5- 1 3  J u ry may be demanded 

32- 1 5- 1 4  Wh e n  sheriff's fees to b e  advanced by p la intiff - Surety for ju ry fees 

32- 1 5 - 1 5 Note of issue,  fi l i ng  

32- 1 5- 1 6 S pecia l  term of court to hear issue 

32-1 5- 1 7  I ssues tried at any term of court 

32-1 5 - 1 8 What comp la in t  must conta i n  

32-1 5 - 1 9 Jo inder ,  consol idation ,  and separation of proceed ings 

32-1 5-20 Who may defend 

32-1 5-2 1 Power of cou rt 

32-1 5-22 Assessment of damages 

32-1 5-22 . 1  Em inent domain - Compensation for moving personal property 

32- 1 5-23 When righ t  to damages accrues 

32-1 5-24 When tit le defective 

32-1 5-25 When judgment paid 

32-1 5-26 Payment or deposit - Proceed ings annu l led 

32-1 5-27 F ina l  order - F i l i ng  

32-1 5-28 Pub l i c  corporation bound  by j udgment 

32-1 5-29 When possession taken - How money paid defendant - Acceptance - Abandonment of defenses 

32-1 5-30 Payment of money i nto cou rt at r isk of p la i ntiff 

32- 1 5-3 1 Deposit  of money with state treasurer 

32-1 5-32 Costs 

32-1 5-33 Rules of practice 

32-1 5-34 New tria l s  and appeals 
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32-1 5-35 Eminent doma i n  proceed ings - Costs of defendant to be paid when proceed ings withdrawn or d ism issed by party bri ng i ng  the proceed ings 

Back to top 
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CHAPTER 32-1 5  
EMINENT DOMAIN 
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32-15-01. Em inent  domain defined - How exercised - Condemner defined -

Exceptions. 
1 .  Em in ent doma in  is the r ight  to take p rivate p roperty for pub l i c  use . 
2 .  Private property may not be taken or  damaged for pub l i c  use without j ust 

com pensat ion fi rst havi ng  been made to or pa id  i n to cou rt for the owner. When private 
property is  taken by a person ,  no benefit to accrue from the proposed improvement 
may be a l l owed i n  ascerta i n i ng  the com pensat ion to be made therefor. Private 
property may not be taken for the use of, or  ownersh i p  by, any private i nd iv idua l  or 
ent i ty, un less that property is necessary for conduct ing  a com mon carrier or ut i l i ty 
bus iness . A determ inat ion of the com pensat ion m ust be made by a j u ry, un less a j u ry 
is wa ived . The right  of emi nent  doma in  may be exercised i n  the manner  provided i n  
th i s  chapter. 

3 .  Notwithstand i ng  any other p rovis ion o f  law, a p u b l i c  use or  a p u b l i c  pu rpose does not 
i ncl u d e  pub l i c  benefits of economic deve lopment ,  i nc l ud i ng  an i ncrease i n  tax base ,  
tax reven ues ,  emp loyment, o r  genera l  economic  hea lth . 

4 .  For t h e  pu rpose of th is  chapter, "condemner" means a person empowered to take 
property u nder  the power of em inent doma i n .  

32-15-02. P u rposes for which exercised. 
Subject to the provis ions of th is chapter, the rig ht of em inen t  doma in  may be exercised in 

beha l f  of the fo l l owing  pub l i c  uses : 
1 .  Al l pu b l i c  uses authorized by the government of the U n ited States .  
2 .  Pub l ic  bu i l d i ngs and grounds for the use of  the state and  a l l  othe r  pub l ic  uses 

authorized by the leg is lative assemb ly  of the state . 
3 .  P u b l i c  b u i l d i ngs a n d  grounds for t h e  u s e  o f  a n y  cou nty, c ity, park d istr ict ,  o r  schoo l 

d i str ict ; cana l s ,  aqued ucts , fl umes ,  d itches ,  o r  p ipes for cond u cti ng  water for the use of 
the i n hab itants of any cou nty or city, o r  for d ra i n i ng  any  county or city; ra is ing the 
ban ks of streams,  removi ng obstruct ions therefrom ,  and widen i ng ,  deepen i ng ,  or  
stra ighten i n g  the i r  channe ls ;  roads ,  streets , and a l l eys ,  and  a l l  other  uses for the 
benefit of any  county, city, or park d i str ict , or the i nhab itan ts thereof, wh ich may be 
authorized by  the leg is lative assemb ly, but  the mode of apport ion i ng and col lecti ng the 
costs of such improvement shal l  be such as may be provi ded i n  the statutes by which 
the same may be authorized . 

4 .  Wharves , d ocks , p iers, chutes, booms ,  ferr ies, b ridges ,  to l l  roads ,  byroads ,  p lank  and 
turn p i ke roads ,  ra i l roads and street ra i lways ,  e lectric l ight  p lants and power 
transmiss ion  l i nes and cana ls ,  d itches ,  fl umes ,  aqued ucts , and p ipes for pub l i c  
transportat io n ,  supp ly ing  m ines ,  and i rr igati n g ,  dra i n i n g ,  and  recla im i ng  lands .  

5 .  Roads ,  tun ne l s ,  d itches,  fl u mes, p ipes ,  and d ump ing  p laces for worki ng  m i nes ,  out lets , 
natu ra l  o r  otherwise , for the flow, deposi t ,  or conduct of the ta i l i ngs  or  refuse from 
m i nes and  m i l l  dams .  

6 .  Byroads lead i n g  from h ighways to res idences a n d  farms .  
7 .  Telegraph and  te lephone l i nes .  
8 .  Sewage d i s posa l  of  any city, or of any  sett lement cons ist i ng of not l ess than  ten 

fam i l ies ,  o r  of any  pub l ic  bu i ld ings belong ing  to the state , or  of any  col lege or  
u n ivers ity. 

9 .  Cemeter ies a n d  pub l i c  parks . 
1 0 . O i l ,  gas ,  coa l ,  and  carbon d ioxide p i pe l i nes and works and  p lants for supp lyi ng  or 

conducti n g  gas,  o i l ,  coa l ,  carbon d ioxi de ,  heat, refrigeration , or power for the use of 
any county, c ity, or the i nhab itants thereof, together  with l ands ,  bu i l d i ngs ,  and a l l  other  
imp rovements i n  o r  upon wh ich to  erect, i nsta l l ,  p lace ,  ma in ta i n ,  use ,  or operate 
p u m ps ,  statio n s ,  tanks ,  and other mach i ne ry or apparatus ,  and bu i l d i ngs ,  works , and 
p lants for the  pu rpose of generati ng ,  refi n i n g ,  reg u lat i ng ,  compress i ng ,  transm itti ng ,  or  
d i stri bu t i ng  the same ,  or necessary for the proper deve lopment  and contro l of  such 

Page No .  1 
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gas,  o i l ,  coa l ,  carbon d ioxide ,  heat ,  refrigeration , or power, e i the r  at the t im e  of the 
taking  of sa id property or for the future proper development and control thereof. 

1 1 .  Lands sought to be acq u i red by the state or any du ly  authorized and  des ignated state 
offic ia l  or  board , wh ich lands necessari ly  must be flooded in w iden i n g  or ra i s i ng  the 
waters of  any body or  stream of nav igab le or pu b l i c  water i n  the state of  North Dakota . 

32-1 5-03. What estate su bject to be taken . 
The fol l owi ng  is a c lass ification  of the estates and r ights i n  lands subject to be taken for 

pub l i c  use :  
1 .  A fee s imp le ,  whe n  taken for pub l i c  bu i l d i ngs or grounds ,  for permanent  bu i l d i ngs ,  for 

reservo i rs and dams and perm anent flood ing occasioned thereby, for a n  out let for a 
flow or a p lace for the  deposit of debris  or tai l i ngs  of a m ine ,  o r  for the con struct ion  of 
park ing lots and faci l i t ies for motor veh ic les . 

2 .  An  easement ,  when taken for h ighway pu rposes or for any  othe r  use except ,  u pon  a 
proper a l l egat ion of the need therefor, the cou rt sha l l  have the  power to orde r  that a 
fee s imp le  be taken for such other  use .  

3 .  The rig ht of entry u pon and occupation of iands and ihe right  to take therefrom such 
earth , g rave l , stones ,  trees ,  and t imber as may be necessary for a pub l i c  use .  

However, the p rovis ions of th is  sect ion sha l l  not authorize the state or  any  po l i t ica l  subd iv is ion 
thereof to obta i n  any  r ights or i n terest i n  or to the o i l ,  gas ,  or flu i d  m inera ls  on or  u nde rly i n g  any 
estate or r igh t  i n  lands subject to  be taken for a pub l ic  use .  

32-1 5-03. 1 .  Declaration of legislative intent .  
Repealed by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-1 5-03.2. Termination of estates greater than an easement.  
No transfer to the state of North Dakota or any of its pol i t ical subd ivis ions  of p roperty for 

h ighway purposes sha l l  be deemed to i nc lude any i nterest g reater than a n  easement ,  and 

• 

where any  g reater estate sha l l  have been so transferred , the same is h ereby reconveyed to the 

• 
owner from wh ich such land was orig i na l l y  taken ,  or to the he i rs ,  executors , adm i n i strators , or  
ass igns of  such owner. Such reconveyance sha l l  be subject to any  exist i n g  contracts or 
agreements cover ing such property, and a l l  rights and  benefits thereof sha l l  accrue to the 
gra ntee . 

32-1 5-04. What property may be taken .  
The  private property wh ich may  be  taken under t h i s  chapter i nc l udes :  
1 .  Al l rea l  property be long ing  to any person .  
2 .  Lands be long i ng  to  t h i s  state or to  any  county, city, or park d istr ict, n ot appropriated to 

some pub l i c  use .  
3 .  Property appropriated to  pub l i c  use ,  bu t  such  p roperty sha l l  not be taken u n l ess for a 

more necessary pub l i c  use than that to wh ich it has been appropri ated a l ready, and 
use by a pub l i c  corporation sha l l  be deemed a more necessary pub l ic  use than use for 
the same purpose by a private corporat ion or l i m ited l i ab i l i ty company, and  whenever a 
r ight of way sha l l  have been taken and the person , f irm , corporat ion , o r  l i m ited l i ab i l ity 
company tak ing  such r ight  of way sha l l  fa i l  or neg lect for f ive years to use the same for 
the purpose to wh ich it had been appropriated , the attem pt by a nother  perso n ,  fi rm , 
corporat io n ,  or l im ited l i ab i l i ty company to appropri ate such r igh t  of way sha l l  be  
cons idered a more necessary pub l ic  use .  

4 .  Franch ises for to l l  roads ,  to l l  bridges ,  ferries ,  and  a l l  other  franch ises ,  but  such 
franch i ses sha l l  not be taken un less for free h i g hways, ra i l roads ,  or  other  more 
necessary pub l i c  use .  

5 .  Any  system of waterworks , e lectric l i ght and power p lant ,  we l l s ,  reservoi rs ,  p i pe l i nes ,  
mach inery, franch ises ,  and  a l l  other  property of any character whatsoever com p ri s i ng  
a waterworks system or an e lectric l i g h t  and  power system .  
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6 .  Al l r ights of way for any  a n d  a l l  the pu rposes m entioned i n  section  32- 1 5-02 a n d  any 
and a l l  structures and improvements thereon ,  and the lands held or used i n  connection 
therewith , sha l l  be subject to be con nected with , crossed , or in tersected by any other 
r ight of way or i mprovement or  structu re thereon . They a lso shal l  be subject to a 
l i m ited use i n  common with the owner thereof when necessary, but such uses , 
cross ings ,  i ntersections ,  and  connections  sha l l  be made i n  the manner most 
com patib le with the greatest pub l ic  benefit and  the least private i nj u ry. 

7 .  Al l c lasses o f  private property not enumerated m a y  be taken for p u b l i c  use when such 
tak ing is authorized by law. 

32-1 5-05. What must appear before property taken .  
Before property can be  taken i t  must appear :  
1 .  That the use to wh ich it is to be app l ied i s  a use authorized by l aw. 
2 .  That the taki ng  is  necessary t o  such use .  
3 .  I f  a l ready appropri ated to some pub l i c  use ,  that the pub l i c  use to wh ich  i t  i s  to be 

app l ied is  a m ore necessary pub l ic  use .  

32-1 5-06. Entry for making surveys. 
I n  a l l  cases when land is requ i red for pub l i c  use ,  the person or corporat ion ,  or the person's 

or  corporat ion 's  agents,  in charge of such use may su rvey and locate the same ,  but i t  m ust be 
located in the manner  wh ich wi l l  be compatib le  with the g reatest pub l i c  benefit and  the least 
p rivate i nj u ry and  subject to the prov is ions of sectio n  32- 1 5-2 1 . Whoever is  in cha rge of such 
pub l i c  use may enter upon the land and make exa m inat ions ,  su rveys , and maps thereof, and 
such entry constitutes no  cla im  for re l i ef i n  favor of the owner  of the land except for i nju ries 
resu lt i n g  from neg l igence,  wantonness , or ma l ice .  

32-1 5-06. 1 .  Duty to negot iate - Just compensation - Appraisals. 
1 .  A condemnor sha l l  make every reasonab le and  d i l i gent effort to acqu i re property by 

n egotiat ion . 
2 .  Before i n it iat i ng  negotiat ions for the pu rchase of property, the condemnor  sha l l  

estab l i sh  an  amount  wh ich it bel ieves to be j ust com pensat ion therefor and  promptly 
sha l l  subm it to the owner an offer to acq u i re the property for the fu l l  amount so 
estab l i shed .  The amount sha l l  not be less than the condemner's approved appraisa l  or 
written statement and summary of just compensat ion for the property. 

3 .  I n  estab l i sh i ng  the amount  bel ieved t o  be j ust com pensation ,  the condem nor sha l l  
d isregard any decrease or i ncrease i n  the fa i r  market va lue  of the property caused by 
the project for wh ich the property is to be acq u i red or by the reasonab le  l i ke l i hood that 
the property w i l l  be acqu i red for that p roject, other  than a decrease due  to phys ica l 
d eteriorat ion with i n  the reasonable control of the owner. 

4 .  T h e  condemnor  sha l l  prov ide the owner of the property with a written appra isa l ,  i f  one 
has been prepared , or  if one has not been prepared , with a written statement and 
summary, showing  the basis for the amount i t  estab l i shed as just compensat ion for the 
p roperty. I f  appropriate , the compensation  for the property to be acqu i red and for the 
damages to rema in i ng  property sha l l  be separate ly  stated . 

32-1 5-06.2 .  Disclosures. 
The condemnor, u pon  request, shal l  prov ide the property owner or  the owner's 

representat ive with the n ames of at least ten ne ighbor i ng  property owners to whom offers are 
be i n g  made ,  or a l ist of a l l  offerees if fewer than ten owners are affected . A cu rrent and  re levant 
m a p  showing  al l ne ig h bor ing property affected by a project sha l l  a l so be prov ided to the 
property owner. U pon  req u est by an owner or the owner's representative ,  the condemnor  sha l l  
p rovid e  the names of any other property owners with i n  that  coun ty and adjacent count ies whose 
property m ay be taken for the project .  The owner  or  the owner's representative sha l l  have the 
righ t ,  u po n  request, to exa m i n e  any  maps in the possess ion of the condemnor showing  property 
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affected by the  project . The  owner or  t he  owner's representative may obta i n  cop ies o f  such 
maps by tenderi ng  to the condemnor the reasonab le and  necessary costs of prepar ing copies . =#bJ9 

32-15-07. Proceedings by civil action .  
Repealed by omiss ion from th is  code .  

32-15-08. Form of summons - When served. 
Repealed by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-15-09. Service by publication . 
Repea led by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-15-10. Copy of summons served through mails. 
Repealed by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-1 5-1 1 .  Service complete; when .  
Repealed by  omiss ion from th i s  code .  

32-15-12. When  note of  issue filed. 
Repealed by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-15-13. J ury may be  demanded. 
Whenever in an action brought u nder the prov is ions of th is chapter a n  issue i s  formed 

whereby it appears that the attendance of a j u ry wi l l  be necessary to assess the d amages i n  
such action ,  the p la int iff there in  m a y  apply to the judge of the d istrict cou rt where t h e  same i s  
pend ing for an  order requ i ri ng  a j u ry t o  b e  summoned t o  assess t h e  damages i n  s u c h  actio n .  
Thereu pon t h e  judge sha l l  issue an order t o  the clerk of said cou rt req u i ri ng  a j u ry t o  be 
summoned , and i n  such order shal l  specify the number of j u rors to be d rawn , the p lace where 

• 

they are to appear, and the t ime when they sha l l  come ,  wh ich sha l l  be not less than  e ight  days 
• nor more than th i rty days from the date thereof. 

32-15-14. When sheriffs fees to be advanced by plaintiff - Surety for j u ry fees.  
Repealed by S . L . 1 98 1 , ch . 354 , § 1 . 

32-15-15. Note of issue, filing. 
Repealed by om iss ion from th is  code .  

32-15-16. Special term of cou rt to hear issue. 
The cou rt shal l  s i t  at a specia l  term to hear the case accord i ng  to law and the pract ice of the 

court ,  and shal l  have the same power to complete the j u ry as is  now prov ided by law, and the 
pay of such j u rors ,  and the pena lty for fa i l u re or refusal to appear, sha l l  be the same as  i n  other 
cases . 

32-15-17. Issues tried at any term of court . 
The tria l  of any action  under  th is  chapter may be had at any  genera l ,  speci a l ,  o r  adjo u rned 

term of d i strict cou rt ,  he ld  or ca l led i n  the county i n  wh ich such action  may be pend i n g ,  and  such 
act ion may be tried at any such term . I f  issue is not jo ined pr ior  to the com m encement of any 
regu la r, spec ia l ,  or adjourned term , the p la i ntiff nevertheless may req u i re sa id  cause to be tried 
on such day thereof as the cou rt may order, but p la int iff shal l  serve u pon  the oppos ite party, or 
parties ,  a seven days' notice of tri a l ,  specifyi ng the date of tri a l , as fixed by order  of the cou rt .  

32-15-18. What complaint must contain . 
The comp la int must conta i n :  
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1 .  

2 .  

3 .  
4 .  

5 .  

The n a m e  of the corporat ion , associat ion , commiss ion , or  person i n  charge of the 
pub l ic  use for wh ich the property is sought ,  who must be styled  p la i ntiff. 
The names of al l owners and cla imants of the property, i f  known , or  a statement that 
they a re u n known , who must be sty led defendants . 
A statement of the right of the p la i nt iff. 
I f  a right  of way is sought ,  the comp la int must show the l ocat ion , genera l  route, and  
term i n i ,  and m ust be  accompan ied with a map  thereof so  far as  t he  same i s  involved i n  
the act ion or  p roceed ing . 
A descri ption  of each p iece of l and  sought to be taken and whether the same inc ludes 
the who le or on ly  a part of an ent i re parcel o r  tract. 

32-15-19. Jo inder, consolidation , and separat ion of proceedings.  
Al l  parce ls  of  land ly ing i n  the cou nty and requ i red for the same pub l i c  use may be inc luded 

i n  the same or  separate proceed ings ,  at the opt ion of  the p la in tiff, but  the cou rt may conso l idate 
or separate them to su it the conven ience of part ies .  

32-15-20. Who may defend. 
Al l persons in occu pation of, or  having o r  cla i m ing  an in terest i n ,  any of the property 

descri bed in the com p la i nt or  i n  the damages for the taking  thereof, thou g h  not named , may 
a ppear, p l ead , and  defend ,  each in  respect to such person's own p roperty or  inte rest, or that 
c la i m ed by such person ,  i n  l i ke manner as if named i n  the com pla in t .  

32-15-21. Power of court. 
1 .  The cou rt sha l l  have power: 

a .  To regu late a n d  determ i ne  the p lace a n d  manner  of mak ing  connect ions and 
cross i ngs ,  or of  enjoying  the com mon use ment ioned i n  subsection 6 of  sect ion 
32-1 5-04 . 

b .  To hear  a n d  determ ine a l l  adverse o r  confl i ct ing c la i m s  to the property sought to 
be  condemned and to the damages for the property. 

c .  To d eterm ine  the respect ive rig hts of  d ifferent part ies seek i ng  condemnation of 
the same property. 

2 .  Notwithstand i ng  a n y  other  provis ion o f  law, i f  a route perm it i s  requ i red under  chapter 
49-22 o r  49-22 . 1 ,  the court may order  the tak ing by em inent  doma in  cond it ioned on 
the rece i pt of the route permit .  

32-15-22. Assessment of damages. 
The j u ry, or  cou rt ,  or referee ,  if a j u ry is wa ived , m ust hear such lega l  testimony as may be 

offered by any of the part ies to the proceed ings and thereupon m ust ascerta i n  and assess : 
1 .  The va l u e  of the property soug ht to be condemned and a l l  i m provements thereon 

perta i n i ng  to the realty and of each and every separate estate or  i n terest there i n .  I f  i t  
cons ists of d ifferent parce ls ,  the val u e  of each parcel and each estate and i nterest 
there i n  sha l l  be separate ly assessed . 

2 .  I f  the p roperty sought t o  b e  condemned con stitutes on ly  a part of a larger parce l ,  the 
d amages wh ich  wi l l  accrue to the port ion not sought to be condemn ed by reason of i ts 
severan ce from the port ion sought to be condemned and the construct ion of the 
i mp rovement  in the manner p roposed by the p la i ntiff. 

3 .  I f  t h e  p roperty, though no part thereof i s  take n ,  wi l l  be damaged by the construct ion of 
the proposed i mprovement ,  the amount  of such damages .  

4 .  I f  the p roperty i s  taken or damaged by the state or  a pub l i c  corporat ion , separate ly, 
how m u ch the port ion not sought to be  condemned and each estate or in terest there i n  
wi l l  be  benefited , i f  a t  a l l ,  by  the  con struct ion of t he  i mprovement  p roposed by the  
p la i nt iff, a n d  i f  the benefi t  sha l l  be  eq ua l  to  the  damages assessed u nder  subsections  
2 and  3 ,  the owner  of  the  parce l shal l  be  a l lowed no com pensat ion except the va lue  of 
the port ion take n ,  but if the benefit sha l l  be l ess than  the damages so assessed the 
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former  sha l l  b e  deducted from the latter and the rema inder sha l l  be the on ly  damages 
a l lowed i n  add i t ion to the va l ue  of the port ion taken . 

5 .  As  fa r as p ract icab le ,  compensat ion must be  assessed separately  for property actua l ly 
taken and for damages to that wh i ch is not taken .  

32-15-22.1.  Eminent domain - Compensation for moving personal property. 
Repealed by S . L .  1 973 ,  ch . 407 ,  § 1 7 . 

32-15-23. When right to damages accrues. 
For the pu rpose of assess ing com pensation and damages , the right  thereto sha l l  be 

deemed to have accrued at the date of  the tak ing and i ts  actua l  val ue  at that d ate sha l l  be the 
measure of com pe nsation  for a l l  property actua l l y  to be taken , and the bas is of damages to the 
property not actua l l y  taken , but i nj u rious ly  affected ,  i n  a l l  cases when  such damages are 
a l lowed as provid ed i n  sect ion 32- 1 5-22 . The time  of the tak ing sha l l  be d eterm i ned  by the 
cou rt .  

32-15-24. When title defective . 
If the t it le acq u i red i s  found  to be defect ive from any cause , the p la i nt iff aga i n  may i nst i tute 

proceed ings to acq u i re the same as i n  th is chapter prescri bed . 

32-15-25. When judgment paid. 
The p la i nt iff, with i n  th i rty days after the entry of fi na l  judgment ,  m u st pay the sum of money 

assessed , except where school or pub l ic land u pon wh ich no contract is outstand i ng  i s  taken for 
pub l ic  use under  th is  chapter, the p la in tiff sha l l  pay for such land as fo l l ows : one-fifth of the sa le 
price i n  cash at the t ime  of the sa le ;  one-fifth of the pu rchase price each five years thereafter on 
the ann iversary date of the sa le ,  wi th i n terest at the rate of not less than th ree percent per 
annu m ,  payab le  annua l l y  i n  advance . 

32-15-26. Payment or deposit - Proceedi ngs annu l led. 
Payment may be made to the defendant  ent it led thereto , or the money may be depos ited i n  

cou rt for t he  defendant  and be  d istri buted to those ent it led thereto . I f  t he  money is  no t  so pa i d  or 
depos ited , the defendant  may have execut ion as i n  civi l act ions ,  u n less execut ion is stayed by 
order of the cou rt pend i ng  a motion for a new tria l  or on appea l ,  and if the money cannot be 
made on execution , the cou rt  u pon a showi n g  to that effect must set as ide and  a n n u l  the ent i re 
proceed ings .  

32-15-27. Fina l  order - Filing. 
When payments have been made as req u i red i n  sect ions 32- 1 5-25 and  32- 1 5-26 ,  the cou rt 

must make a fi na l  order  of condemnat ion ,  wh ich must descri be the p roperty condemned and  the 
pu rposes of such condemnat ion . A copy of the order must be fi led in the office of the recorder  of 
the county and thereupon the property descri bed there in  sha l l  vest in the p la i n tiff for the 
purposes there i n  specified . 

32-15-28. Public corporation bound by judgment. 
In the event that any property i s  be ing acqu i red by any pub l i c  corporatio n  th rough  

condemnat ion proceed ings ,  such pub l i c  corporation sha l l  be  bound  by the  j udgment  rendered 
therein and with i n  six months after the entry of such a judgment  sha l l  pay i nto cou rt the fu l l  
amount  o f  t h e  judgment  on account  of damages. I f  the p u b l i c  corporat ion  s h a l l  d ism iss the 
act ion pr ior to the entry of judg ment thereon ,  the court sha l l  award to the defendant  reasonab le  
actua l  or statutory costs , or both ,  wh ich shal l i nc lude reasonab le  attorney's fees .  

32-15-29. When possession taken - How money paid defendant - Acceptance -
Abandonment of defenses. 

• 

• 

At any t ime after the entry of j u dgment ,  whenever the p l a i nt iff sha l l  have pa id  to the 

• defendant, or i n to cou rt for the defendant , the fu l l  amount of the j udgment ,  the d i str ict cou rt i n  
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wh ich the proceed ing was tried , upon notice of not less than th ree d ays , may authorize the 
p la i nt iff to take possess ion of and use the property d u ri ng  the penden cy of and  unt i l  the fi na l  
conc lus ion  of the l it igation  and , i f  necessary, may stay a l l  act ions and p roceed ings aga inst the 
p la i nt iff o n  account thereof. The defendant, who is  ent i t led to  the money pa id i nto cou rt  for the 
defendant  upon judgment ,  sha l l  be entit led to demand and receive the same at  any time 
thereafter upon obta i n i ng  an order  therefor from the court .  The cou rt , o r  a j udge thereof, upon 
app l i catio n  made by such defendant ,  sha l l  order  and  d i rect that the money so pa id i nto court for 
the d efendant be de l ivered to the defendant u pon  the d efendant's fi l i n g  a satisfact ion of the 
j udgment ,  or  upon the defendant's fi l i ng a recei pt therefor and an abandonment of al l  defenses 
to the act ion or proceed i ng except as to the amount of damages that the defendant may be 
ent i t led to i n  the event that a new tria l  sha l l  be g ra nted . A payment to a defendant  as aforesa id  
sha l l  be he ld  to  be  an abandonment by  such  defendant  o f  a l l  defenses i nterposed by  the  
d efendant ,  except t he  defendant's cla im for greater com pensation . 

32-15-30. Payment of money into court at risk of plaintiff. 
The payment of the money i nto court as provided for i n  th i s  chapter sha l l  not d ischarge the 

p la i nt iff from l i ab i l i ty to keep the sa i d  fund  fu l l  and without  d im i nut ion , but  such money shal l  be 
and rema i n  as to al l  accidents,  defa lcations ,  o r  othe r  cont i ngencies as  between the parties to 
the p roceed ings at the risk of the p la i ntiff, and sha l l  rema in  so u nt i l  the amount of the 
com pensat ion or damages fi na l l y  is sett led by j ud ic ia l  determ inat ion and unti l the cou rt awards 
the money, or such part thereof as sha l l  be d eterm ined upon , to the d efendant ,  and unt i l  the 
d efendant  i s  authorized or  requ i red by order of cou rt to take i t .  I f  for any reason the money at 
any t im e  sha l l  be lost, o r  otherwise abstracted or  withdrawn , through no  fau l t  of the d efendant ,  
the cou rt sha l l  req u i re the p la i ntiff to make and keep the sum good at a l l  t imes unt i l  the l it igation 
fi na l l y  i s  brought to an end ,  and u nti l pa id over or  made payab le  to the defendant by order  of the 
cou rt ,  as p rovided i n  sect ion 32-1 5-29,  and unt i l  such t ime or t imes the c lerk of court sha l l  be 
deemed to be the custod ian of the money and sha l l  be l iab le  to the p la i ntiff u pon the clerk's 
offic ia l  bond for the same ,  or any part thereof, i f  for any  reason it is lost, or otherwise a bstracted 
or wit hd rawn . 

32-15-31. Deposit of money with state treasurer. 
The cou rt may order the moneys to be depos ited i n  the state treasu ry and i n  such case the 

state treas u rer  sha l l  rece ive al l  such moneys , d u ly rece i pt for and safe ly keep the same in a 
spec ia l  fu nd  to be entered on the state treasurer's books as a condemnat ion fund for such 
p u rpose ,  and  for such d uty the state treasurer  sha l l  be l i ab le  to the p la int iff u pon the state 
treas u re r' s  offic ia l  bond . The state treasu rer sha l l  pay out  such money so deposited i n  such 
manner  and  at such t imes as the cou rt or j udge thereof by order  may d i rect. 

32-15-32.  Costs. 
The  cou rt may in its d iscret ion award to the defendant  reasonab le actual or  statutory costs 

o r  both , wh ich  may i nc l ude  i nterest from the time of tak ing except in terest on the amount of a 
depos i t  wh ich  is ava i l ab l e  for withd rawa l without prejud ice to rig ht of appea l ,  costs on  a ppea l ,  
a n d  reasonab le attorney's fees for a l l  j ud ic ia l  proceed i ngs .  I f  t he  defendant a ppeals and  does 
n ot p reva i l ,  the costs on appeal may be taxed agai n st the defendant .  I n  al l  cases when a new 
tri a l  has  been g ranted upon  the app l ication of the defendant  and  the defendant has fa i l ed upon 
such  tri a l  to obta i n  g reater compensat ion than was a l l owed the defendant u pon  the fi rst tri a l ,  the 
costs of such  new tria l  s ha l l  be taxed against the defendant .  

32-15-33 .  Rules of p ractice . 
Except as otherwise  p rovided i n  th is  chapter, the prov is ions of the North Dakota Ru les of 

C iv i l  Procedu re are app l i cab le  to and constitute the ru les of pract ice in  the proceed ings 
m ent io n ed i n  th i s  chapter . 
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32-15-34. New trials and appea ls .  
The provis ions of  th is code re lative to  new tria ls  and appeals ,  except i nsofar  as they are 

inconsistent with the provis ions of th is chapter, app ly  to the proceed ings  ment ioned i n  th is  
chapter, but u pon the payment of  the damages assessed the p la i ntiff sha l l  be enti t led to  e nter 
i nto , improve , and hold possession of the property sought  to be condemned as provided  i n  
sect ion 32- 1 5-29 a n d  t o  devote t h e  same t o  t h e  p u b l i c  use in  question , and n o  m ot io n  for a new 
tria l or appeal  after such payment sha l l  retard the contemplated improvement  in a n y  manner. 
Any money wh i ch sha l l  have been deposited , as provided i n  sect ion 32- 1 5-29 ,  sha l l  be app l ied 
to the payment of the recovery upon a new tria l  and the remainder, if there is  any, sha l l  be 
returned to the p la i nt iff. 

32-15-35. Eminent dom ain proceedings - Costs of defendant to be paid when 
proceedings withdrawn or dismissed by party bringing the proceedings. 

Whenever the state acti ng  by and throug h  i ts officers , departments,  o r  agencies ,  o r  any 
mun ic ipa l ity or pol i t ical subd iv is ion of th is state act ing by and throug h  its officers , departments, 
or agencies ,  or  any pub l i c  ut i l i ty, corporation , l im ited l i ab i l ity company, associat ion , or  other 
entity wh ich has been granted the power of em inent domain by the state , sha l l  commence 
eminent doma in  proceed ings aga inst any land with in  th is state and thereafter withd raws or  has 
such proceed ings d ism issed without agreement of the defendant ,  the state , m u n ic ipa l i ty, 
po l it ical  subd iv is io n ,  pub l i c  ut i l ity, corporation ,  l im ited l i ab i l ity company, associat ion , or e ntity 
commenc ing such em inent doma in  proceed i ngs sha l l  be l iab le for and  pay to the owner of such 
land a l l  cou rt costs , expenses ,  and fees , inc lud ing reasonable attorney's fees as sha l l  be 
determi ned by the court i n  wh ich the proceed i ngs were fi led . 
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SENATE AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE 
Date : January 31, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. 
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Mark Gaydos, Environmental and Transportation Services Director 

House Bill 2238 

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee .  I am Mark Gaydos, 
Environmental and Transportation Services Director at the North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (Department) . I am here to oppose Senate Bill 223 8 .  Thank you for 
giving me the opportunity to discuss this proposed bi l l  and answer any questions . 

The Department acquires highway right of way by purchase or eminent domain in 
accordance with North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) Title 24 .  The statutes in Title 24 
are specific to the Department ' s  needs and unique issues .  Senate Bi l l  223 8 changes the 
established process, and creates ambiguity by requiring the Department to obtain 
approval from a County Commission prior to exercising eminent domain proceedings . 

The Department believes the bill unreasonably delegates its responsibility and authority 
for eminent domain to County Commissions . The bi l l  delays and adds expense for a 
public proj ect. There are no timelines or specific guidance provided on how this new 
process would work. For example, how and when does a commission have to act, or how 
does the commission make the determination to allow or disallow eminent domain. 

Many times, the Department is able to negotiate an agreement, but needs to process an 
eminent domain action in order to resolve title issues, such as probates or liens . This 
resolution mutually benefits both parties and is not appealed. 

The bill restricts the Department ' s  ability to enter directly into eminent domain and may 
even stop a proj ect . Specifically, the bil l  gives the County Commission arbitrary 
discretion to approve or stop a project on the State Highway System that someone may 
disagree with, even though the project is necessary and reasonable .  

The Department follows State statutes, uses sound judgement, and applies reasonable 
process in its exercise of eminent domain . The Department is familiar with and 
knowledgeable with the proposed highway proj ect, and is in the best position to make 
proj ect decisions .  For the above stated reasons, the Department asks for a Do Not Pass 
on Senate B il l  223 8 .  

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to answer any questions . 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council slaff for 
Senator Luick 

January 3 1 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2238 

Page 1 ,  line 1 0 , after the underscored period insert "For purposes of this subsection. the term 
"political subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipality's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipal ity is 
located. " 

Page 2 ,  line 3, after the underscored period insert " For purposes of this subsection. the term 
"pol it ical subdivision" does not include a municipality that exercises the municipal ity's 
eminent domain or extraterritorial authority within the county where the municipal ity is 
located. " 

Renumber accord ingly 
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North Dakota Senate 
Agriculture Committee 
Chairman Larry Luick 

January 31, 2019 

By: Josh Wolsky 
Alderman, City Council, City of Minot 
iosh.wolsky@minotnd.org 
701-340-1763 

SB 2238 

Chairman Luick and Members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, my name is Josh 

Wolsky. The governing body of the City of Minot is a city council consisting of the mayor and 

six aldermen. I am one of those six aldermen. On behalf of the City of Minot, thank you for the 

opportunity to speak today on behalf of our entire city council in opposition to SB 2238 . 

As a political subdivision, the City of Minot from time to time has to acquire property 

through eminent domain. We must, of course follow state and federal law whenever we use this 

tool. However, our policy is to use it sparingly. If at all possible, the City tries to avoid the use 

of eminent domain. 

As a last resort tool, when we do exercise it, city staff and consultants, our legal team, 

and the City Council are all deeply involved in the process of acquiring the needed parcels. The 

City knows the detailed history of each parcel, and what the specific issues are regarding the 

acquisition of the parcel. 

SB 2238 complicates this process tremendously. Let me address that both procedurally 

and substantively. 

First, procedurally. SB 2238 would add another step at the beginning of the eminent 

• domain process by adding approval of the County Commission to exercise eminent domain 
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proceedings. Let us note that the County Commission is likely not involved in the project or 

may only have limited knowledge of why the parcel is required for the project. The City would 

need to educate the County Commission as to the purpose of the acquisition which would require 

time and expenditure upon the City, and also the time of the County Commission. Additionally, 

the County Commission is likely busy with the matters the Commission must oversee, and this 

would add to their workload. Additionally, there is the risk that the Commission may want to 

block the acquisition for an unknown reason which could stop a necessary project from moving 

forward, which the County would not oversee or maintain, or otherwise have anything to do 

with. 

Substantively, SB 2238 would result in a loss of local control. Involving the county in 

city business in this manner is nearly unprecedented. In what other area would we give the 

county essentially veto control over a city matter? We are a state that largely respects local 

control, which generally believes that elected officials closest to the matter are in the best 

position to weight competing issues, and ultimately be accountable for the decisions. Let's keep 

it that way. Let's not raise city decisions to a county level. 

It is for these reasons that the City of Minot opposes SB 2238 and would ask for a Do 

Not Pass. Thank you and I will stand for questions. 
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Dustin Gawrylow 
North Dakota Watchdog Network 
dgawrylow@watchingnd.com 
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Re: January 15, 2019 Open Records Request 

Dear Mr. Gawrylow: 

Seth A. Thompson 
sathompson@vogellaw.com 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

Thank you for the open records request you sent to Kim Schilke on January 15, 2019. Vogel Law 
Firm represents the Western Area Water Supply Authority ("WAWSA"), and I write in response to 
your request that seeks: 

documentation for ALL usage of Eminent Domain and/or Quick Take since 
chartering by the state; when it has been executed and used, as well as when it has 
been threatened to be used (i.e., legal notice sent to land owners (i.e. legal notice 
sent to land owners). 

Your request is vague as to what is being sought; thus, I write for clarity. Your request asks for 
documentation for all usage of eminent domain and/or quick take since WAWSA's creation. It is 
unclear what documents your request seeks. Does your request seek all documents related the use 
of eminent domain and/or quick take since WA WSA creation? If so, please note such a request 
seeks thousands of documents and will require many hours of work to fulfill the request. By law, 
WA WSA is entitled to charge a reasonable cost for a public records request at .25 cents per page 
and $25 per hour after the first hour. N.D.C.C. § 44-04-18(2). 

Note that instances in which WA WSA has used eminent domain are in the public domain because 
eminent domain actions are litigated in the courts of North Dakota. Thus if you are seeking the 
instances in which eminent domain has been used, a list of district court case docket numbers in 
which WA WSA has used eminent domain can be provided. Please let me know if this will satisfy 
your request. 

Your request also asks for documentation as to when eminent domain has been "threatened." 
Please clarify this request. For clarity, I do not understand your request to seek documentation in 
which WA WSA has merely explained the eminent domain process to a land owner, but seek your 
clarification. 

VOGI;:L 
Law Firm 

US Bank Building I 200 North 3rd Street, Suite 20 I I PO Box 2097 I Bismarck, ND 58502-2097 
Phone: 701.258.7899 I Fax: 701.258.9705 I Toll Free: 877.629.0705 

Fargo • Bismarck • Moorhead • Minneapolis • Grand Forks www.vogellaw.com 
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I look forward to clarification of your open records request. 

Sincerely, 

Seth A. Thompson 

SAT:jjc 
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